mfm Policy Committee

THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY ==

June 6, 2024
At 9:00 a.m.

ECIDA Offices
95 Perry Street, 4th Floor Conference Room
Buffalo, New York 14203

Call Meeting to Order
Approval of the May 2, 2024 Policy Committee Meeting Minutes (Pages 2-3)
Project Matrix (Informational) (Page 4)

Project Presentation (Staff — Company Q&A)
a) (None)

Compliance Matter
a) 2023 Recapture Update (Informational) (Pages 5-6)

Adaptive Resue Discussion
a) Housing Background Discussion (Pages 7-11)

Adjournment - Next Meeting July 11, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE
ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

DATE AND PLACE: May 2, 2024 at the Erie County Industrial Development Agency,
95 Perry Street, 4th Floor Conference Room, Buffalo, New York

14203

PRESENT: Denise Abbott, Rev. Mark Blue, Zachary Evans, Richard Lipsitz, Dr.
Susan McCartney, Brenda W. McDuffie, Hon. Glenn Nellis, Laura
Smith and David J. State

EXCUSED: Hon. April Baskin, A.J. Baynes, Hon. Byron W. Brown, Lavon
Stephens and Paul Vukelic

OTHERS PRESENT: John Cappellino, President & CEQO; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial
Officer; Soma Hawramee, Compliance Portfolio Manager, Brian
Krygier, Director of Information Technology; Carrie Hocieniec,
Operations Assistant/ Assistant Secretary and Robert G. Murray, Esq.,
as General Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

GUESTS: Yessica Vasquez on behalf of the City of Buffalo

There being a quorum present at 9:00 a.m., the Meeting of the Policy Committee was
called to order by the Chair, Mr. Lipsitz.

MINUTES

The minutes of the April 4, 2024 Policy Committee meeting were presented. Upon
motion made by Ms. McDuffie to approve of the minutes, and seconded by Mr. Blue, the Policy
Committee meeting minutes were unanimously approved.

PROJECT PRESENTATION

Mr. Cappellino provided a status report of 2024 project activity to the Committee. Mr.
Lipsitz directed that the report be received and filed.

ADAPTIVE REUSE DISCUSSION
Mr. Cappellino reviewed the ECIDA’s adaptive reuse policy and its unwritten

requirement conditioning approval of projects that have a market rate housing component upon
the project applicant confirmation to commit to a certain level of affordability. He discussed past



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

Policy Committee meetings and discussions related to this issue and confirmed the Committee’s
desire to “modify” its affordable housing component requirements for such projects.

Mr. Cappellino confirmed the purpose of the adaptive reuse policy is still focused on
reuse of a building, but as presented in the draft affordable housing addendum, certain
affordable/workforce housing rental rates will be required for residential market-rate housing
adaptive reuse projects.

General discussion ensued.

Ms. Smith stressed that the Agency should require, in addition to the requirement of an
affordable/workforce housing rental rate for the specified number of units, that the policy also
mandate that the unit be rented to a person/family whose income falls within the same
affordable/workforce housing income limit, and that Agency establish a procedure to confirm
and monitor the tenant’s income as a condition of providing Agency financial assistance.

The committee expressed a desire that staff develop language requiring certification of
income levels of occupants, as an additional policy requirement, and that the dialogue continue at
the next Policy Committee meeting.

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 10:13 a.m.

Dated: May 2, 2024

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary



UBWAdNPU| Alojepuaiuy,

asnay aandepy T

Tr—r; 73 = = ——- = i — r — i 3 210
L [wveicss It EsSmh-o % st [ [ R €101 £207 |
[ 1 ek | oo ST [ | i 75T [ (Paa e [ ceunspe T | | 1moansasnayaandepy |
sqor sqor pajeasy paleas) pauleldy paujelay junowy 133foad
WNOWY dAUIIU| 1ao|ds  uopsuc)y SQOT Ld SQofld  Sqofld  Sqof 14 Jausunsanu) aeapd :s|ej0 'S|ejoL
Las LYV'8ET'YS sleap 0z 6L 06 [} [o} 0 0 0 0S9°€S9°2TS 000'692°02$ suea3 suea3s|vz-ew |t
107d 0 pouad PIOYsaJy} %58
(443 LB6'6LY'TS SINZ + ep T 94T 1421 ST 0 SE 91 TZ8Y1I0°62S YBO'SETVES ojeyng JAessiuwo) sdavz-lemw |1
uoliz|dwod 13fo.d MBN - %58 PlOYsaIyl %58
ohey
auag sqof’ P2ieas) 3q| pajeas) ag| paugelay| pauesy WUIWRNIWO) WNowy 193foig umay /) a1eq
3507 junowy aARu3dIW waj jo YBusy| saao)ids| sqorasuoy uoneaJ) qof| 031sqorid| 01sqorid| sqofrld| sqorp4| usunsaay Wnwiuiy | AAusuisaau) ajeard pafoly awep 39fosd| |eaosddy
¥20¢ - paaoiddy saaijuadu) xe|




(3]

ECID%

ot BCONGHT DEVECNENT CORFORKITON $00 BiK 00Ty

MEMORANDUM

To: ECIDA Policy Committee
From: ECIDA Staff
Re: Erie County Industrial Development Agency Employment Recapture Summary 2023

Background:

The ECIDA adopted a recapture policy on January 29, 2014, and amended and restated the policy
oh May 25, 2016. When a project fails to achieve the agreed-upon goals identified as Material
Factors by the ECIDA Board, particularly maintaining or creating an agreed-upon number of jobs
related to the approved ECIDA benefits. Projects are required to submit quarterly job reports to the
ECIDA, and if the project falls below its job requirements, the ECIDA staff notifies the ECIDA
President/Chief Executive Officer, the Chair of the ECIDA, the Chair of the ECIDA Policy Committee
and provides the project with the opportunity to respond. The Chair of the ECIDA will then
determine if ECIDA benefits should be terminated and/or modified and/or recaptured. Once a
determination is made, the project is notified and given an opportunity to be heard and appeal the

determination.

Summary:

In 2023, the Agency recaptured a portion of the PILOT (payment in lieu of taxes) for nine projects,
based on employment shortfall percentages. The projects were provided with the option to either
repay the pro-rata portion of the incentive or appear before the Policy Committee and ECIDA Board
to seek a different resolution. In total, the Agency recaptured $29,967.17 from nine projects, and all
funds were redistributed to the appropriate taxing jurisdictions. Additionally, two projects, Group V
Real Estate (Tenant: Athenex Pharma) and Column Development (Tenant: L&W Supply), terminated

their PILOTs in 2023.



L1966 $ | TTETV'T $ | £6'808'¥T $ | 9T's9z'e $ | 18'69%'s $
s:mdodsy| sunidoday sboyiA| einidooey 100yos| ainidonosy umoj| esmdossy Atunosy
(2 0AR
AYNLAYIIY IVLIOL
LT°296'6Z$ TZETV'T $ E£6'808'PT $ 9159Z'8$ lz'69r'ss$ violL
*107id Auna3 3y Jo| vi'68 $ = $ G $ a $|ves  $ (%9 %E'E6 5'0- L SL 02| 10Z/8T/9
uonuod o paindooas Alug Buimarg uos)g Buiky
‘ZZTOT U] PIPUR 1OUd 1D
T6'LEE'S ¢ - $| ¥8299'C $| 90°TL9T $ | 10666 $ |%ETT %L.'88 8- £9 TL "3Uj ‘YSN IA0X3|4|STOZ/BT/TT
T6'L9T'T § 2 3 = $|LTPI6 $ | vLEsZ $ x9S ETCT LT~ 26 60T Ui (9T0Z/12/2T
RUET e LT Y S E T
OT'66E'S $ | TZETP'T $ | ¥6'ZES'T $ | BL6TE § | LTEZT'T$ %892 %T'EL g€~ vot t444 “di0) a)ny uospy|LT0Z/9Z/Y
T2'0ZE's $ = $|zLTiL'e $ | TzEre'T $ | 8To0L  § |xv'9 %9'E6 ¥I- ¥0Z BIZ PV ‘s3jBojouydal (9T0z/22/9
[ISIVENEENT S BT EYTS
‘6ToZ ulpus| - $ B $ - $ = $ - $ [%99L %€ bs- LT TL {pulibyd xausyiv|8102/12/2
01 33s A)ouibuo som 1 OTId S13upua]) *au)
*Aordnpjuog Juouay 03 anp ‘8)p1s3 |paY A dnoug
¥20Z ‘T Aonupr aansaye
UOIDUILILRY 1071d A3
'9T0T Ut pual 09'TESY § = $| 1ZETE'Z § | Tr'oee'T $ | 86'TBE  § |%6°08 %169 0T- [ €€ (Alddns|gToz/52/L
©139s Ajoublio som LQTid MY St aupua)
P2OZ ‘T Aonuor sandays uswdo|anag
uonouuwIs: 1 oid Al4o3 uwinjo?
€2°889'C § - $ | 8L'9ES'T $ | 08'L0L §$|S9EVY ¢ |%5°® %5'T6 9~ 59 T ‘P{5T02/9T/9
‘Rapuibyg a1msdn
- Aupdwo) amod
3 PURT UiAays
SY9TT'Y $ = $ | 8E'ZLE'T § | 6L°050°T § | 8v'E6S % [%L'9 AE'E6 2= 8z 0E (205wy 51 3upuay)(9ToE/52/8
271 ‘'D-uamypouy
TUOTE'T § - $190v19  $| vy §$|ZT6LZ $ |%pT %9°86 PR 724 (114 (oxapos sijuouaL}|sT0Z/BT/8
d7 ‘aipmplaq
$0 diysiauing
pup|lun ayy
oN| amdooey|  esmdoasy doday| eumdosay dooey| |Iojoys ¥ £202 181 (3L4) (3L4) a6ns0ny| (314) weloid apa
10304 aBojin 100425 umoy, Afunogy aunwwiod|  STMMIS qor £20Z|  qOr ¥O-TD €202 wswannbay WaweINpY)
wewfojdwy qor wnuuu g
i

sdafosd aimdoasy val funod au3 £z0z




Draft as of May 31, 2024

ADAPTIVE REUSE POLICY
Addendum #1

Applicability of the Adaptive Reuse Policy to an Adaptive Reuse Project
consisting of or containing an element of, for rent residential housing

May _, 2024

Objective

Adaptive Reuse Projects consisting entirely of, or containing an element of, for-rent residential
housing (hereinafter, collectively, an “Adaptive Reuse Housing Project”) continue to seek
financial assistance from the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”). These
project have successfully enabled the Agency to encourage the adaptive reuse of old and often
abandoned and blighted structures, being one of the primary purposes of the Agency’s Adaptive
Reuse Policy. To help address the growing housing affordability and accessibility challenges
faced by many Erie County residents, the Agency will now require Adaptive Reuse Housing
Projects to include a certain number of, and potentially a mix of configurations of,
workforce/affordable housing units that must be leased to a tenant(s) meeting certain income
eligibility limits, subject to the criteria described herein.

Key Definitions/Concepts

Adaptive Reuse Housing Project. An Adaptive Reuse Project consisting entirely of, or containing
an element of, for-rent residential housing.

Area Median Income (“AMI”). AMI is the median household income for a particular geographic
area. The New York State Affordable Housing Corporation (“AHC”) publishes annually the
Statewide and regional AMI figures. AMI serves as the benchmark for setting income thresholds
that govern eligibility for housing assistance programs in New York. These programs often define
their income limits as specific percentages of AMI, such as 50% of 80%, to determine if an
individual or household qualifies for aid in covering housing expenses.

Workforce/Affordable Housing Rental Rate. For the purposes of this Addendum #1, the Agency
defines a housing unit as “affordable” if the total housing costs do not exceed 30% of a household’s
gross monthly income. The Workforce/Affordable Housing Rental Rate for a
Workforce/Affordable Unit shall equal the product of (i) 30% and (ii) the 80% AMI figure for the
year of initial occupancy for each such lease agreement lessee based on the number of occupants
of a unit, where it is assumed a studio unit houses one person, a 1BR unit houses one person, a
2BR unit houses two people, and a 3 BR unit houses three people, and then dividing the product
by 12.

Workforce/Affordable Unit. A residential unit within an Adaptive Reuse Housing Project that is
subject to the terms and conditions of this Addendum #1.




Drart as of May 31, 2024

Adaptive Reuse Housing Project Requirements

To qualify for Agency financial assistance, in addition to meeting the existing Adaptive Reuse
Policy criteria, an Adaptive Reuse Housing Project must:

@

(i)

(iii)

contain a certain number of Workforce/Affordable Unit(s) having rental rates
affordable to individuals and families at the Workforce/Affordable Housing Rental
Rate; and

contain, if possible, a mix of configurations (studio, 1BR, 2BR, 3BR) of
Workforce/Affordable Unit(s) to meet housing needs for households of varying size
based on a building’s internal infrastructure and related financing considerations;
and

Require and restrict, via income verification, the occupancy of the
Workforce/Affordable Unit(s) to the leasehold agreement lessee whose annual
income is at or below the 80% AMI figure as identified in the AHC table for the
initial year of occupancy of each such lease agreement lessee of a
Workforce/Affordable Unit.

The required number of Workforce/Affordable Unit(s) for a project to qualify as an Adaptive
Reuse Housing Project is as follows:

Total Number of Units Number/Percentage of required Workforce/Affordable Units

1-10

At least one workforce/affordable unit

11-50

10%, with the required number to be determined by multiplying
10% by the total number of units and rounding the product up if
the product contains a decimal of 0.5 or higher, and rounding
the product down if the product contains a decimal of 0.4 or
lower

51-100

15%, with the required number to be determined by multiplying
15% by the total number of units and rounding the product up if
the product contains a decimal of 0.5 or higher, and rounding
the product down if the product contains a decimal of 0.4 or
lower

101 or more

20%, with the required number to be determined by multiplying
20% by the total number of units and rounding the product up if
the product contains a decimal of 0.5 or higher, and rounding
the product down if the product contains a decimal of 0.4 of
lower




Draft as of May 31, 2024

Applicants will be required to certify and confirm, at the time of application and on an annual basis
during the term of the Agency’s monitoring and compliance period (not to exceed the applicable
time period being two years following project completion (certificate of occupancy issuance) or
the term of the PILOT Agreement benefit period, or such other term as required by the Agency)
that the project will meet and continues to meet the Addendum #1 Adaptive Reuse Housing Project

Requirements.

The goal of the Agency’s Adaptive Reuse Policy is, ultimately, to encourage the adaptive reuse of
existing but abandoned/blighted buildings. Notwithstanding - anything contained within this
Addendum #1 to the contrary, the Agency reserves the right to waive any or all the terms and
conditions of this addendum on a case-by-case basis. This waiver can be granted if the Agency
determines that strict adherence to Addendum #1 requirements would jeopardize the adaptive
reuse of a building in alignment with the Agency’s Adaptive Reuse Policy goals.



BUFFALO
NIAGARA
14 PARTNERSHIP
s

May 17, 2024

ECIDA Chair

Brenda McDuffie

The Economic Development Corporation for Erie Country
95 Perry Street, Suite 104

Buffalo, NY 14203

CC: John Cappellino, ECIDA & ECIDA Board

Dear Chair McDuffie:

| have been following the ECIDA’s Policy Committee's activity as it relates to the desire to
create an affordable housing requirement for Adaptive Reuse projects. The Buffalo Niagara
Partnership (BNP) strongly supports expanding affordable housing options through
targeted incentives and sensible zoning. The BNP has outlined the following concerns
about the Committee’s draft proposal and its effectiveness as it is currently proposed:

1. Affordability but for whom?

The draft proposal requires a percentage of units to fall within income affordability
limits but does nothing to ensure the people renting the units need it most and meet
those requirements. The proposal as written simply limits the amount of rent that
can be charged by a landlord based on the number of total units in the project - no
matter the income level of the person renting.

2. Scale ofimpact given Governor’s legislation

As discussed at the last Policy Committee, the Governor has created a new State
Affordable Housing Program (421P, 421PP) that could significantly increase the
total number of affordable units- both new and renovated- in the region. The timing
of the ECIDA policy change will only serve to confuse the marketplace and will pale

257 West Genesee Street | Suite 400 | Buffalo, New York 14202 |  T1:714852.7100 | F:7168522761 | thepartnership.org

-10-



in comparison to the total number of units that the Governor’s new program can
supply. The NYS program will also ensure the incomes of those renting the units

meet the goal.

3. Unintended impacts on Adaptive Reuse program

The draft policy currently does not have a way for the developer to seek exception if
the creation of the number of affordable units makes the project unworkable. The
adaptive reuse program is especially important given the changing office landscape
which will require many effective tools to spur conversion. Now is exactly the wrong
time to limit the potential of Adaptive Resue.

Instead of advancing the draft policy, the ECIDA needs to explore how it can best leverage
and possibly enhance the NYS program to achieve the important goal of creating the
greatest number of units across our region for those who need them most. The BNP stands
ready to assist in that effort.

Sincerely,

Dottie Gallagher
President and CEO
Buffalo Niagara Partnership

257 West Genesee Street | Suite 600 | Buffalo, New York 14202 | T:716.852.7100 | F:716.852.2761 | thepartnership.org

-11-



